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    The National Observatory of Athens has a long and remarkable record. The present study focuses on the scientific apparatus used from the time the Observatory’s establishment and up to 1900; most of these instruments remain in the site of the Observatory. It also tries to correlate the route of the Observatory with the social and economical circumstances in Greece at this period.

    In 1838, a little more than a decade after the establishment of the first Greek University in Athens, George Vouris, professor of Astronomy in the School of Physics and Mathematics, aided by the Austrian ambassador in Athens, convinced the Baron G. Sina to assume the cost for the construction of an Observatory in Athens.  The foundation stone of the first Observatory in the Balkans area is laid in Athens on June 26th, 1842. 

    Among the first instruments of the Observatory are a Fraunhofer equatorial refracting telescope, a meridian equatorial refracting telescope, two pendulums and a Kessel timekeeper. Vouris calculated the coordinates of the Observatory, which helped in the latter charting of the entire Greek dominion, and published a series of meteorological observations for the years between 1839 and 1841.  He resigned in 1855.
    The next director of the Observatory, following Vouris’ resignation in 1855, is Johan Friedrich Julius Schmidt.  The instruments Schmidt found in the Observatory paled in comparison to what he was accustomed to abroad and he also lacked assistance.  However he managed to produce substantial scientific work.  Following Schmidt’s death in 1884, Kokkidis temporarily assumes the direction of the Observatory and in 1896 the latter is replaced by Dimitrios Aiginitis.

    The new director sets terms which will upgrade scientific instruments, buildings and personnel of the Observatory.  However a change in the government and the dire financial state of the country do not allow for the promised subsidies to be materialized. Aiginitis turns to prosperous Greeks living abroad, asking them to continue Sinas’ work.  A committee for the collection of funds is established under King George and the funds raised go towards the purchase of  a piece of land close to the Observatory, a large equatorial refracting telescope with a diameter of 40cm, a meridian refracting telescope of 16cm diameter as well as other instruments. These funds have been obtained because of Aiginitis policy to offer modern services to the State, such as a meteorological and a seismological department.
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